
Board Meeting 
 
 
 

Date: December 2, 2013 

Time:  6:00 p.m. 

Place:  Central Office 

Sheridan County School District #2 



Sheridan County School District #2 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Central Office – Board Room 

December 2, 2013 
6:00 p.m. 

 

Agenda 
I. Call to Order 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Election of Board Officers (Action) – Scott Hininger 

 
II. Recognition 

A. Henry A. Coffeen, Meadowlark, and Woodland Park Elementary Schools Exceeding 
Expectations – Scott Stults 

B. WSBA Standard of Excellence Awards – Craig Dougherty 
C. Excellence in Extension Award – Craig Dougherty 

 
III. Approval of Agenda 

 
IV. Welcome – Audience Comments 

 
V. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Approval of Minutes – November 4, 2013 
B. Approval of Bills for Payment 
C. Acceptance of Out-of-State Tuition Request 

 
VI. Old Business 

A. Capital Construction Update (Information) – Craig Dougherty 
B. Approval of Policies (Action) – Cody Sinclair 

 
VII. New Business 

A. Acceptance of Donation to Sheridan High School (Action) – Dirlene Wheeler 
B. Sheridan Economic and Educational Development Authority (SEEDA) Participation 

(Action) – Craig Dougherty 
C. Snow Day Make-up Calendar Change (Action) – Scott Stults 

 
VIII. Reports and Communication 

A. Board of Trustees 
1. Board Committees (Information) – Board Chairperson 

B. PTO/Parents/Students/Organizations 
C. Site Administration and Staff 

 
IX. District Reports 

A. Superintendent 
 

X. Executive Session 
A. Personnel Matters 
B. Legal Matters 
C. Real Estate Matters 

 
XI. Adjournment 



                

 
DATE:  
 
TO:  
 
FROM: 
 
SUBJ:  
 
 
Election 
and BDB
 
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Scott 

Electi

of officers w
B-Board Offi

ce and Accou

mber 20, 20

d of Trustees

Hininger, Ch

ion of Board

will occur du
icers are atta

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

hairman 

d Officers (A

uring recogn
ached for you

Dougherty, Super

Action) 

ition.  Polici
ur informatio

rintendent 

 

ies BDA-Bo
on.   

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

oard Organiz

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

zational Mee

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

eting 



BDA 
 
 

BOARD ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
 
The Board shall reorganize annually by the election of officers 
from its membership at the first regular meeting in December.  
The meeting shall be chaired by a chairperson pro-tem until a 
chairperson is elected. 
 
The officers of the Board shall be chairperson, vice- 
chairperson, clerk, and treasurer. 
 
Election shall be by voice vote unless a paper ballot is 
requested by any Board member.  Nominations shall be made from 
the floor.  A nominee must receive a majority vote of Board 
members for election to office.  Should no nominee receive a 
majority vote, the election shall proceed until a member is 
elected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:    1/14/13 
Second Reading:   2/04/13 



BDB 
 
 

BOARD OFFICERS 
 
Duties of the Chairperson 
 
The chairperson of the Board shall preside at all Board meetings 
at which he or she is present and shall cosign with either the 
clerk or treasurer all warrants and checks drawn on the school 
district treasury. 
 
The chairperson shall have full voice and vote on all motions 
put before the Board. 
 
Duties of the Vice-Chairperson 
 
The vice-chairperson shall preside at all meetings in the 
absence of the chairperson.  If neither chairperson or vice- 
chairperson is present, the Board members who are present shall 
elect a temporary chairperson for the purposes of the meeting. 
 
Duties of the Clerk 
 
The clerk has the responsibility to: 
 
 1. Cosign, with the chairperson, all warrants and checks 

unless the treasurer’s signature is affixed. 
 
 2. Cause the minutes kept of the Board and a calendar of all 

matters referred to committees and others, and report 
action or non-action on the same at each regular meeting. 

 
 3. Oversee custody of the record books and documents of the 

board. 
 
 4. Cause the annual report to be made and forwarded to the 

proper local, county, and state officials. 
 
 5. Cause to be filed all papers pertaining to district 

business. 
 
6. Call special meetings of the Board when requested. 
 
 
 
 

1 



BDB 
 

BOARD OFFICERS 
 

Duties of the Treasurer 
 
The treasurer is the custodian of the school district funds.  
The treasurer shall: 
 
 1. Cause an account to be kept of the receipts and 

expenditures of the district. 
 
 2. Cosign, with the chairperson, all warrants unless the 

clerk’s signature is affixed. 
       

 
 3. Oversee custody of all district money and pay out district 

money on order of the clerk, countersigned by the 
chairperson. 

 
 4. Cause the rendering of a financial statement at any time 

required by the Board and, at the close of each fiscal 
year, cause to be published in some newspaper of general 
circulation within the school district, a detailed report 
showing the sources of revenue and the purposes for which 
monies were expended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:   1/16/06  
Second Reading:  2/13/06 

2 



Sheridan County School District No. 2 
                                                Board of Trustees 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

Scott Hininger, Chairman   November 4, 2013                   Craig Dougherty, Superintendent 

 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 
 

 
I. Call to Order 

The regular monthly meeting of the Board of Trustees of Sheridan County School District #2 
was called to order at 6:00 p.m., Monday, November 4, 2013, in the Board Room at the 
Central Administration Office.  The presiding officer was Ann Perkins, Vice-Chairman.  A 
quorum was determined to be present with the following attendees: 
    
Trustees:  
 
Ann Perkins, Vice-Chairman 
Wayne Schatz, Treasurer 
Marva Craft, Clerk 
Richard Bridger 
Erica O’Dell 
Jim Perkins 
Molly Steel 

 
Absent: 
Scott Hininger, Chairman 
Hollis Hackman 
 

Administrators: 
 
Craig Dougherty, Superintendent 
Terry Burgess, Assistant Superintendent  
Tom Sachse, Assistant Superintendent 
Scott Stults, Director of Elementary Education 
Roxie Taft, Business Manager  
Julie Carroll, Facilities Director 
Coree Kelly, Technology Director 
 
Absent:  
 
 

 
II. Recognition 

A. Highland Park and Sheridan Junior High School Receive Ranking of “Exceeds 
Expectations” – Terry Burgess and Scott Stults 
Assistant Superintendent Terry Burgess said that Sheridan Junior High School and Principal 
Mitch Craft were being recognized for receiving a ranking of “Exceeds Expectations” by 
the new state accountability system pilot for 2012-2013.  The status was based on last year’s 
PAWS scores, which exceeded the state average.  Mr. Burgess congratulated Sheridan 
Junior High School and Principal Craft for continued success for the betterment of students. 
 
Director of Elementary Education Scott Stults said that Highland Park also received the 
distinction based on the PAWS data.  He said that Highland Park’s PAWS scores were far 
above the state average.  In third grade, Highland Park was 11 points higher than the state 
average in mathematics and 26 points higher in reading.  In fourth grade, Highland Park’s 
scores were 16 points higher in mathematics and 17 points higher in reading.  In fifth grade, 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 2

Highland Park was 18 points higher than the state average in mathematics and 27 points 
higher in reading.  Mr. Stults said that great things are going on at Highland Park.  He 
congratulated Principal Leibach and his staff for a job well done. 

 
B. Mick Wiest – Wyoming Teacher of the Year – Terry Burgess 

Assistant Superintendent Terry Burgess said that District Teacher of the year, Mick Wiest, 
was also recently named as the State of Wyoming Teacher of the Year.  Mr. Wiest is known 
as a very dedicated and humble teacher to all of the Fort Mackenzie staff.  Mr. Burgess said 
that Mr. Wiest’s ability to mold, teach, and work with high school students is masterful. 
 
Mr. Wiest said that this was an extremely humbling award to receive.  He said that he 
appreciates the opportunity to teach and thanked the Board for their dedication to students.  
He thanked his wife, Cindy, for her support and said that nothing would be possible without 
her inspiration.  He thanked Laurien Rahimi for nominating him.  Mr. Wiest said that it is 
easy to do a great job educating children because the District expects, affirms, and projects 
excellence.  He thanked the board and the administration for their support in allowing him 
to be a part of the District. 
 
 

III. Approval of Agenda 
 
TRUSTEE CRAFT MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA, AS 
PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE SCHATZ SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT CARRIED 
WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
 

IV. Welcome--Audience Comments 
There were no audience comments. 
 
 

V. Consent Agenda Items 
 

A. Approval of Minutes for October 7, 2013 
 

B. Approval of Bills for Payment 
General Fund          2,885,106.50 
Federal Fund             159,103.51 
TOTAL:                    $3,044,210.01 

 
TRUSTEE O’DELL MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEMS, AS PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE STEEL SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT 
CARRIED WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
 
 
 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 3

VI. Old Business 
 

A. Capital Construction Update (Information) – Craig Dougherty 
District Superintendent Craig Dougherty said the progress of the construction of the new 
Henry A. Coffeen Elementary School is going well.  Construction crews are preparing for 
winter construction.  Superintendent Dougherty said that Facilities Director Julie Carroll 
and TSP architects are doing a wonderful job keeping the project on time and in preparing 
the new building for the students and staff. 
 
The construction of Sheridan High School entryway is still in progress but due to a backlog, 
some materials required for construction have not arrived.  The overall timeline has not 
been affected by this shortage.  The construction is expected to be completed on November 
22nd, and the new entrance will be ready for use on November 25th.  The new entrance is 
expected to be a model for the state in terms of security.  An open house is anticipated to 
take place sometime after Christmas. 
 
Superintendent Dougherty said that the Capital Construction Committee will attend a 
Capital Construction meeting on November 12th to begin the 2013-2014 facility plan.  He 
said that the full board will be consulted after the committee has created the plan with 
Facilities Director Julie Carroll.   
 
Trustee Schatz asked if the construction of Henry A. Coffeen Elementary was on schedule.  
Superintendent Dougherty responded that the construction was following the timeline to be 
finished late next summer, with a move-in date set for August.  

 
B. Approval of Policies (Action) – Cody Sinclair 

Human Resources Coordinator Cody Sinclair said that four policies were being presented 
for first reading and three policies were being presented for second reading. 
 
FIRST READING 

 
Mr. Sinclair said that changes to Policy GBF – Criminal Background Check and 
Fingerprinting were made due to a Department of Criminal Investigations audit.  Only one 
person in the school district is allowed to have access to criminal background checks. 
 
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT POLICY GBF – 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK AND FINGERPRINTING ON FIRST 
READING, AS PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE SCHATZ SECONDED THE MOTION, 
AND IT PASSED WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Mr. Sinclair said that Policy KBD – School Community Relations would be deleted, 
because the information is contained within policy KBDA-E. 
 
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS MADE A MOTION TO DELETE POLICY KBD – 
SCHOOL COMMUNITY RELATIONS ON FIRST READING, AS PRESENTED.  



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 4

TRUSTEE O’DELL SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT PASSED WITH A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
Mr. Sinclair said that Policy KBDA-E – Parental Involvement Policy (Title I Schools) 
received minor updates for formatting and to keep consistency with statute. 
 
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT POLICY KBDA-E – 
PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY (TITLE I SCHOOLS) ON FIRST 
READING, AS PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE O’DELL SECONDED THE MOTION, 
AND IT PASSED WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Mr. Sinclair said that Policy KCC – Memorial/Meritorious Policy was adjusted to clarify 
that the Board would approve essential gifts. 
 
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT POLICY KCC – 
MEMORIAL/MERITORIOUS POLICY ON FIRST READING, AS PRESENTED.  
TRUSTEE SCHATZ SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
Discussion ensued.  Trustee Steel identified a typographical error within the policy.  Trustee 
Bridger observed that the wording of “significant service” was vague and suggested that it 
be clarified or stricken from the policy.  Mr. Sinclair said that a memorial could be 
approved to recognize a monetary gift or a service; and that the approval would be at the 
board’s discretion.   
 
TRUSTEE CRAFT MADE A MOTION TO TABLE POLICY KCC – 
MEMORIAL/MERITORIOUS POLICY UNTIL THE DECEMBER 2ND BOARD 
MEETING.  TRUSTEE BRIDGER SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT PASSED 
WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
SECOND READING 
 
Policies – Second Reading 
Mr. Sinclair said that of the policies up for second reading, only Policy GCBA – 
Professional Staff Salary Schedule received minor clarifications after first reading, and that 
all the policies were recommended for approval at second reading.   

 
TRUSTEE CRAFT MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT POLICY GCBA – 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF SALARY SCHEDULE, POLICY JRA – STUDENT 
RECORDS, AND POLICY JRA-P – PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE 
SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING THE MAINTENANCE, TRANSFER, AND 
DISCLOSURE OF STUDENT EDUCATION RECORDS.  TRUSTEE SCHATZ 
SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT PASSED WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
 
 
 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 5

VII. New Business 
 

A. Request to Advertise to Bid Equipment (Action) – Julie Carroll 
Facilities Director Julie Carroll asked for permission to bid for equipment for the 
Technology Hub of Resources for Education (THORE) building.  She explained that the 
new cooler/freezer for the THORE building was purchased to accommodate more federal 
commodities.  She said that a forklift and lift gate truck would be necessary to move the 
items more quickly and efficiently. 

 
TRUSTEE BRIDGER MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE REQUEST TO 
ADVERTISE TO BID EQUIPMENT, AS PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE O’DELL 
SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
Trustee Schatz asked what was currently being used to move the commodities.  Ms. Carroll 
responded that the small freezers and coolers at the maintenance facility were being used to 
store the commodities, and an old forklift is available within that building.  On November 
20th, a large commodities shipment will arrive that will need to be stored in the new 
THORE freezers and coolers, so it would be beneficial to have a forklift prior to that date. 
 
THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE REQUEST TO ADVERTISE TO BID 
EQUIPMENT PASSED WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
B. Wyoming Accountability in Education Act (WAEA) Pilot Results (Information) – Tom 

Sachse 
Assistant Superintendent Tom Sachse said that Highland Park Elementary School and 
Sheridan Junior High School had recently received a rating of “exceeds expectations” from 
the Wyoming Accountability in Education Act (WAEA) Pilot results.  He explained the 
WAEA Pilot indicators.  The achievement index refers to the percentage of students 
proficient and advanced on the PAWS test or the ACT test.  The growth index measures 
student improvement, compared to other students who started at the same level.  Readiness 
is a measure used for high schools instead of growth.  It takes ACT scores and graduation 
rate into consideration.  Equity refers to the number of students found to not be proficient on 
the previous year’s PAWS test, but who are expected to be proficient within three years.  
For eleventh grade students, equity refers to the change from the previous year in the 
number of students who are found to be below proficient in reading or math on the ACT 
test.  Participation rate is a measure of what percent of students took the PAWS test or the 
ACT test.  Participation rates below 95% results in a school being placed into the “not 
meeting expectations” category.  In the next few weeks, it will be released that 45% of 
schools in Wyoming are meeting expectations, 25 % are partially meeting expectations, 
15% are not meeting expectations, and 5% are not rated (in cases in which the population is 
too small to report). 

 
C. Secondary Schools’ Improvement Plans (Information) – Terry Burgess 

Assistant Superintendent Terry Burgess said each of the secondary schools has shown great 
success.  Sheridan High School was recognized by the US News and World Report as a 
silver award winner for academic rigor.  Sheridan Junior High School received the highest 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 6

reading and math scores on the PAWS test of all the 4A schools in Wyoming.  Their scores 
were 14 to 21 percentage points higher than the state average.  Fort Mackenzie juniors 
scored a composite score of 22.6 on the ACT test.  Mr. Burgess said that it is the goal of all 
of the schools that students learn, and that the students, parents, and staff work together to 
enhance teaching and learning.   
 
Mr. Burgess introduced Sheridan High School (SHS) Principal Dirlene Wheeler to present 
the SHS improvement plan. 
 
Principal Wheeler said that SHS had a wonderful year last year, but improvements still need 
to be made.  She said that they are making a difference one student at a time.  The teachers 
are working as educators, but also as role models to make a difference for each student.  She 
said that there is a policy of “no excuses, no complaints, only solutions” for the students and 
staff of Sheridan High School.  The teachers are building knowledge about the needs of 
each student, especially those that struggle, and they are conducting meetings with parents 
and counselors to build individual education plans.  Tutoring is available on Tuesdays and 
Wednesdays for students who need the additional help.  Also, the accountability of the 
teachers has been increased with the use of PLC assessments, helping each student to 
receive the same essential skills and knowledge.  The teachers are more purposeful in their 
instruction, they embrace change, and they prepare each student for his/her potential. 
 
Trustee Schatz asked about the high goal for this year’s graduation rate.  Principal Wheeler 
responded that the current senior class is currently at a 94% graduation rate, and she expects 
that 90% of the senior class will graduate this year.  She added that she hopes that the 
legislation requiring school attendance to the age of eighteen or until graduation will pass. 
 
Principal Wheeler introduced Fort Mackenzie/Wright Place Principal Sean Wells. 
 
Principal Wells said that it is truly an honor to work at Fort Mackenzie and the Wright 
Place.  He outlined the schools successes, explaining that the 2012-2013 ACT composite 
score for Fort Mackenzie was the highest of any school in the state at 22.6.  He added that 
the school is fortunate to have English teacher Mick Weist, who was chosen as the 
Wyoming Teacher of the Year.  Mr. Wells said that improving the graduation rate is a major 
area of emphasis for Fort Mackenzie, and in the Wright Place, the PAWS test and writing 
assessments are areas for improvement.   
 
Trustee Jim Perkins asked about the Fort Mackenzie ACT preparatory course.  Principal 
Wells said that the students would be required to attend practice at least three times a week, 
though the class would be offered five times per week. 
 
Principal Wells introduced Sheridan Junior High School Principal Mitch Craft. 
 
Principal Craft focused his discussion on teacher influence.  He said that statistics show 
teacher quality to have six times the impact on student success as all other influences, even 
including socio-economic status and family dynamics.  A statistical difference is even 
evident between “great” teachers and “good” teachers.  “Great” teachers tend to produce 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 7

students with 13 points more in reading and 18 more points in math every year than “good” 
teachers.  For this reason, building the capacity of teachers is paramount.  The Professional 
Learning Community (PLC) concept is important as a way to build philosophy, systematic 
framework, and equity.  The PLC concept ensures that all students have the opportunity to 
receive the same instruction. 
 
Principal Craft added that the special education department was restructured this year.  In 
the past, special education students have been pulled out of class to receive instruction; 
however, those students have fallen behind.  The special education program has been 
restructured.  Students with Individual Education Plans (IEPs) now receive regular 
classroom instruction in classes with additional teachers and paraprofessionals, but they also 
receive an additional intervention class to maximize the positive impact. 
 
Principal Craft said that teachers are the key to student success, and they continue to work 
harder and rise to the challenges each year.  Mr. Craft thanked the Board for their service to 
the District, staff, and students. 
 
Trustee Bridger asked when the special education students receive their extra instruction 
and if it effects their ability to have additional electives.  Mr. Craft responded that the 
students attend the intervention groups throughout the day.  They do have fewer electives 
than other students, but the intervention class is intended to target gaps in learning. 
 

D. FY14 Quarterly Financial Update (Information) – Roxie Taft 
Business Manager Roxie Taft said that as of the end of the first quarter on September 30th, 
18.65% of the budgeted revenue had been received, primarily from state sources.  
Expenditures totaled 14% of the general fund budget, which is expected. 

 
VIII. Reports and Communications 
 

A. Board of Trustees 
1. Wyoming School Boards Association (WSBA) Resolution Addressing 

Cyberbulling (Action) – Rich Bridger 
Trustee Bridger suggested bringing forth a resolution to the Wyoming School 
Boards Association (WSBA) preventing cyberbullying, with the knowledge that 
there is currently nothing that can be legally done to stop it.  Trustee Bridger asked 
the Board to support the resolution for the WSBA to encourage legislation enforcing 
laws to prevent cyberbullying and make cyberbullying a punishable offense. 
 
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS MADE A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 
WYOMING SCHOOL BOARDS RESOLUTION ADDRESSING 
CYBERBULLYING, AS PRESENTED.  TRUSTEE CRAFT SECONDED 
THE MOTION. 
 
Trustee Jim Perkins asked the American government students present at the board 
meeting if they understood the proposed legislation and if they thought it was a good 
idea.  Many of the students nodded in agreement. 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 8

 
Trustee Steel said that she strongly agreed with the resolution.  She said that she had 
recently seen some cyberbullying Facebook posts that were unsettling.  She thanked 
Trustee Bridger for suggesting the legislation. 
 
THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE WYOMING SCHOOL BOARDS 
RESOLUTION ADDRESSING CYBERBULLYING PASSED WITH A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Trustee Bridger encouraged everyone to attend the Sheridan High School state 
football playoff game against Cheyenne East on Friday, November 8th.  
 
Trustee Craft said that she was able to witness a Sheridan Junior High School guitar 
class taking place at Java Moon.  She said that it was wonderful to see the students 
so excited to share their accomplishments.  She added that the teacher is what had 
allowed them to really progress and move forward with the class. 
 
Trustee Ann Perkins congratulated the swimmers who attended the state swimming 
competition.  She added that Superintendent Dougherty’s daughters had done a great 
job at the swimming competition. 
 

B. PTO/Parents/Students/Organizations 
There were no PTO/Parents/Students/Organizations reports. 

 
C. Site/Administration/Staff 

There were no Site/Administration/Staff reports. 
 
 

IX. District Administration  Reports                                                                                                                 
 

A. Superintendent 
Superintendent Craig Dougherty congratulated Mick Wiest for receiving the Wyoming 
Teacher of the Year award.  Mr. Wiest is the first teacher of the year from the District since 
1974.  He added that Mr. Wiest has had phenomenal results for years, and that he is in the 
running to be the National Teacher of the Year. 
 
Superintendent Dougherty said that in comparison to other schools the scores of Wyoming 
are at the top.  He said that Wyoming ranks fourteenth of all the states and that the United 
States is ranked eighth of all the nations of the world. 

 
TRUSTEE SCHATZ MADE A MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 
7:10 PM.  TRUSTEE STEEL SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT CARRIED 
WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE.   
 
 
 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 9

X. Executive Session: 
 
The Board went into Executive Session at 7:15 p.m. to address personnel, legal, and real estate 
matters.   

 
TRUSTEE SCHATZ MADE A MOTION TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION AT 
8:50 PM.  TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT CARRIED 
WITH A UNANIMOUS VOTE.   
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 p.m. 

 
TRUSTEE SCHATZ MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE REVISED PERSONNEL 
ACTION REPORT, AS AMENDED.  TRUSTEE STEEL SECONDED THE MOTION.  
THE MOTION CARRIED WITH A MAJORITY VOTE.  TRUSTEE BRIDGER 
ABSTAINED FROM THE VOTE. 
 
TRUSTEE SCHATZ MADE THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATION BY SEEDA TO THE 
WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL, AS AMENDED.  TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS 
SECONDED THE MOTION.  THE MOTION CARRIED WITH A UNANIMOUS 
VOTE. 

 
 

XI. Adjournment: 
 

TRUSTEE STEEL MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 8:52 P.M.   
TRUSTEE JIM PERKINS SECONDED THE MOTION, AND IT CARRIED WITH A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:52 pm. 

 
 
 
 
        ______________________________________ ___________________________________ 
 
             Chairman       Clerk 
  



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 10

SHERIDAN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 
PERSONNEL REPORT  

November 4, 2013 
 
CLASSIFIED STAFF 

     
Approvals: 
 
Nicole Jahn  Paraprofessional-Title I Effective 
Sagebrush School  6.0 hours/day (137 days) 10/22/13 
 
Elizabeth Kennedy After School Coordinator Effective 
Henry A. Coffeen,  8.0 hours/day (150 days) 11/02/13 
Sagebrush, and Woodland 
Park Schools 
 
Janet Kitzrow  Paraprofessional-ESL Effective 
Sagebrush School  6.0 hours/day (138 days) 10/21/13 
 
Shane Medeiros  Custodian Effective 
Sagebrush and Highland 8.0 hours/day (184 days) 10/16/13 
Park Schools 
 
Nick Neuman  Cook’s Helper Effective 
Sheridan High School 2.0 hours/day (144 days) 10/14/13 
 
Rebecca Thomas  Cook’s Helper/Fresh Fruits and Vegetables Effective 
Sagebrush School  3.6 hours/day (141 days) 10/18/13 
 
Changes/Transfers: 
 
Candlen Carlson  Second Cook to Second Cook/Fresh Fruits Effective 
Highland Park School and Vegetables 10/16/13 
  6.0 hours/day to 6.6 hours/day (177 days) 

 
Erica Cote  Paraprofessional-Special Education 1:1 Effective 
Meadowlark School 5.5 hours/day to 6.5 hours/day (175 days) 10/16/13 
 
Mary Nivens  Cook’s Helper/Fresh Fruits and Vegetables Effective 
Highland Park School to Cook’s Helper 10/16/13 
  3.6 hours/day to 3.0 hours/day (177 days) 

 
Loy Harding  Paraprofessional-ESL Effective 
Sagebrush and Sheridan 3.0 hours/day and 5.0 hours/day (175 days) 10/15/13 
High Schools  to 2.0 hours/day and 6.0 hours/day 
  (respectively) 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 11

 
Resignations: 
 
Doran Coon  Custodian Effective 
Sagebrush and Highland 8.0 hours/day (261 days) 10/18/13 
Park Schools 
 
Terminations: 
 
Jay Bridger  Bus Driver Effective 
Transportation Department 4.75 hours/day (175 days) 11/04/13 
 
 
EXTRA DUTY 2013-2014 
 
Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Kaleb Brinkerhoff  Basketball – 7th-8th  Grade C Coach – SJHS 
Casey Cunningham Wrestling – 6th-8th Grade B Coach - SJHS  
Tracy Hewitt-Adams Academic Challenge  
Dave Hoeft  Teacher Mentor 
Kem Price  CPI Training  
Andy Wallenkamp Wrestling – 6th-8th Grade B Coach – SJHS 
 
 
2013-2014 HENRY A. COFFEEN AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM STAFF – 
BRIDGES/21st CENTURY FUNDING 
 
Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Brad Gregorich  Teacher 
 
Changes: 
 
Name  Position 
Jennifer Iden  Paraprofessional to Teacher 
 
 
 
 



                Board Minutes November 4, 2013 

 12

2013-2014 HIGHLAND PARK AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM STAFF – 
BRIDGES/21st CENTURY FUNDING 
 
Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Anna Bradshaw  Paraprofessional 
Yvonne Gatley  Teacher Training 
 
 
2013-2014 SAGEBRUSH AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM STAFF – 
BRIDGES/21st CENTURY FUNDING 
 
 Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Cindy Craft  Teacher 
Ashton Longhofer  Teacher 
Valerie Grammens Teacher 
Nicole Jahn  Paraprofessional 
Janet Kitzrow  Paraprofessional 
Susan Ralston  Paraprofessional 
Amy Rojo  Teacher 
Jen Tarver  Paraprofessional 
 
 
2013-2014 FORT MACKENZIE AND THE WRIGHT PLACE AFTER 
SCHOOL PROGRAM STAFF – BRIDGES FUNDING 
 
 Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Stephen Bailey  Teacher 
David Peterson  Teacher 
 
2013-2014 SHERIDAN HIGH SCHOOL SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAM 
STAFF – BRIDGES FUNDING 
 
 Approvals: 
 
Name  Position 
Lonna Forister  Teacher (substitute)  
Alyssa Lyman  Teacher 



                

DATE: 
 
TO:  
 
FROM: 
 
SUBJ:  
 
 
Henry A
 
Roofing i
Brickwor
underway
Interior fr
the Henry
 
 
Sheridan
 
Furniture
usage of t
weeks. 
 
 
Facility P
 
As requir
Departme
Committe
available.
 
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Craig 

Capit

A. Coffeen El

insulation an
rk is underwa
y for the last 
framing, mech
y A. Coffeen 

n High Schoo

 is in place. 
the area will 

Planning 

red by Wyom
ent (WSFD)
ee to start rev
.  We will ask

ce and Accou

mber 18, 20

d of Trustees

Dougherty, 

tal Construc

lementary Sc

nd membrane
ay on the eas
several week
hanical, elect
Elementary 

ol Entrance 

 We anticip
begin on No

ming State St
) each year. 
viewing our m
k for the fina

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

Superintend

ction Updat

chool 

e are being i
st and west s
ks will end u
trical, and pl
staff and is b

pate moving t
ovember 25th.

tatute, facility
 We will 

master plan a
al facility plan

Dougherty, Super

dent 

te (Informati

installed and 
sides of the b
until next spri
umbing roug

beginning to p

the staff to t
.  System ver

y plans are su
begin meeti

and bring the
n to be approv

rintendent 

 
 

ion) 

d will continu
building.  Co
ing when we
gh-ins continu
prepare furni

the new addi
rifications wi

ubmitted to th
ing with the
e information
ved in the sp

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

ue for the ne
oncrete site w
eather permits
nue to progres
iture bids. 

ition on Nov
ill continue fo

the Wyoming
e Board Cap
n to the Board
pring. 

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

ext several w
work that has
s for continu
ss.  Julie met

vember 22nd. 
for the next se

g School Fac
pital Constru
d when it bec

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

weeks.  
s been 
uation.  
t with 

 Full 
everal 

cilities 
uction 
comes 



                

 

DATE: 
 
TO:  
 
FROM: 
 
SUBJ: 
 
The foll
 
 E
 G
 IH
 J
 K
 
The foll

 
 G
 K
 K
 
 
 

 Excellen

 Novem

Board

Cody 

Appr

lowing polic

EBBA  
GBJ  
HBG-P 
G  

KCC  

lowing polic

GBF   
KBD  
KBDA-E 

ce and Accou

mber 25, 20

d of Trustees

Sinclair, Hu

oval of Poli

ies are being

Preventio
Personnel
Home Sch
Assignme
Memorial

ies are being

Criminal 
School Co
Parental I

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

uman Resour

cies (Action)

g recommen

on of Disease
l Records an
hooling – Pr
ent of Studen
l/Meritoriou

g recommen

Backgroun
ommunity R
Involvemen

Dougherty, Super

rces Coordin

) 

ded for first 

e/Infection T
nd Files 
rocedures 
nts to Class
us Policy 

ded for seco

d Check an
Relations (D
nt Policy (Ti

rintendent 

 

nator 

reading: 

Transmissio

ses and Gra

ond reading:

nd Fingerpr
Delete) 
itle I School

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

on (New) 

de Levels (N

inting 

ls) 

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

New) 

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 



 

 
Policies -  

First Reading 
 
 

 



NEW - EBBA 
 
 

PREVENTION OF DISEASE/INFECTION TRANSMISSION 
 
The Board of Trustees is committed to providing a healthful 
environment for all students and employees.  Actions taken with 
respect to students or employees found to have a communicable 
disease will be consistent with rights afforded individuals 
under state and federal statutory, regulatory and constitutional 
provisions.  Each case of said student or staff member will be 
treated on an individual basis.   
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee will be responsible for 
determining the information to be disseminated to staff, 
parents, and community when a communicable disease is identified 
or suspected in the school setting.   
 
The District will continue to use information from available 
resources, which may include the National Center for Disease 
Control and the Wyoming State Department of Health to revise and 
adopt its policies and procedures.  In that regard, the District 
has adopted a bloodborne pathogen exposure control plan 
consistent with OSHA standards and provide training to staff 
regarding the bloodborne pathogen exposure control plan 
consistent with the risk of exposure which the staff are subject 
to.  The bloodborne pathogen exposure control plan may not 
incorporate all the OSHA regulations applicable to bloodborne 
pathogens and appropriate school district personnel designated 
by the superintendent shall be familiar with the applicable OSHA 
regulations and provide appropriate training as needed to comply 
with the OSHA regulations and changes to those regulations as 
may hereafter be implemented by OSHA.   
 
See also policy: 
 EBB-P Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
 
 



GBJ 
 

  
PERSONNEL RECORDS AND FILES 

 

 
1 

 

Information about staff members is required for the daily 
administration of the school district, for implementing salary 
and other personnel policies, for budget and financial planning, 
for responding to appropriate inquiries about employees, and for 
meeting the Board's educational reporting requirements.  To meet 
these needs, the Ssuperintendent shall implement a comprehensive 
and efficient system of personnel records maintenance control, 
under the following guidelines:   
 
 1. A personnel folder for each present and former employee of 

the School District shall be accurately maintained in the 
central administrative office.  In addition to the 
application for employment and references, the folders 
shall contain records and information relative to 
compensation, payroll deductions, evaluations, and other 
pertinent information.   

 
a. Background Check.  Information received from criminal 

background checks shall not be placed in the District 
personnel file retained for each District employee.  
This information shall be placed in a separate locked 
file cabinet maintained at the central administration 
office.   

b. Medical Records.  Information acquired by the District 
regarding the medical condition or history of any 
employee shall be collected and maintained on separate 
forms and in separate medical files (separate from the 
personnel files) and be treated as a confidential 
medical record except that:  (a) Supervisors and 
managers may be informed regarding necessary 
restrictions on the work or duties of the employee and 
necessary accommodations;  (b) First aid and safety 
personnel may be informed when appropriate if the 
medical condition/disability might require emergency 
treatment. 

c. Former Employees.  Personnel files of former employees 
shall be kept for such period of time as is set forth 
in the retention guidelines of the Wyoming State 
Archives.   

 
 2. The Ssuperintendent shall be the official custodian for 

personnel files and shall have overall responsibility for 
maintaining and preserving the confidentiality of the files 
within the provisions of the Wyoming Public Records Act.   

 



GBJ 
 

 PERSONNEL RECORDS AND FILES (contd.) 
 

 
2 

 

 3. Except as otherwise set forth herein, all personnel records 
are considered confidential under the law and shall not be 
open to public inspection.  Access to personnel files shall 
be limited to persons authorized by the Ssuperintendent to 
use the files for the reasons cited aboveherein.  Access 
shall also be permitted to the information described in 
paragraphs 9 and 10 of this policy and shall not be 
considered confidential for those purposes. 

 
 4. Each employee shall have the right, upon written request, 

to review the contents of his/her own personnel file, with 
the exception of references and recommendations provided to 
the district on a confidential basis by universities, 
colleges, or persons not connected with the district which 
were provided on a confidential basis at the request of the 
employee.   

 
 5. Employees may make written objections to any information 

contained in the file.  Any written objection must be 
signed by the staff member and shall become part of the 
employee's personnel file.   

 
 6. Lists of district employees' names and home addresses shall 

be released only to governmental agencies as required for 
official reports, unless approval to do so is granted by 
the employees.   

 
7. Fingerprint information is maintained in a separate 

location. Access to fingerprint information shall be 
limited to the employee and persons authorized by the 
Ssuperintendent.  

 
 78. Workers’ Compensation, accident reports, doctor excuses for 

leave, doctor requests for staff physical/mental 
accommodation, long term disability applications, Family 
and Medical Leave qualifications and other medical 
information shall also be maintained in separate files.  
The employee may access any or all of this information. 

 
 89. Pursuant to the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, a parent 

of a child attending school within Sheridan County School 
District Number 2 may request the following information 
regarding any teacher(s) that are teaching that parent’s 
child: 

  
 a. whether the teacher is qualified or licensed to teach 



GBJ 
 

 PERSONNEL RECORDS AND FILES (contd.) 
 

 
3 

 

in the areas that he/she is teaching  
 b. whether the teacher is teaching under emergency or 

provisional status 
 c. the teacher’s college major and degree and any other 

graduate degrees; and 
 d. whether the student received any services from a 

paraprofessional and the qualifications of that 
paraprofessional. 

   
 The teacher shall be notified when such a request is made by 

a parent. 
 
 To the extent that the disclosure of the above information 

to a parent requesting the same is inconsistent with the 
Wyoming Public Records Act, employees of Sheridan County 
School District Number 2 shall be considered to have 
consented to and waived the disclosure of this information 
in order to comply with the No Child Left Behind Act of 
2001. 

 
910. The Wyoming Department of Education requires Sheridan County 

School District No. 2 to provide it with the following 
information with respect to teachers in the district:  the 
teacher’s degree (undergraduate, graduate, or doctorate 
along with major and/or minor), institution said degrees 
were received from, year conferred, grade point average, and 
the results of any Praxis II exams taken by the teacher. 

 
 To the extent that the disclosure of the above information 

to the Wyoming Department of Education is inconsistent with 
the Wyoming Public Records Act or other applicable law, 
employees of Sheridan County School District No. 2 shall be 
considered to have consented to and waived the disclosure of 
this information to the Wyoming Department of Education.   

 
  
 
W.S. 1977 16-4-201  
 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:   11/8/10 
Second Reading:  12/6/10  
 



 
IHBG-P 

 
 

HOME SCHOOLING - PROCEDURES  
 

 
 

This procedure is designed to be the district’s implementation 
process for home school students who desire to include public 
school classes as part of their approved home school curriculum 
pursuant to Board Policy IHBG.  This procedure is written to 
clarify school and district details for consistent 
administration of that policy.  The school district and the 
Board of Trustees recognize and value the option of 
homeschooling by parents. 
 
 
Part time attendance in the Sheridan County School District #2 
schools by home school students is at the discretion of the 
school principal and superintendent.  The minimum part-time 
attendance is 0.25 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) (PAC comment – Is 
this wording necessary? The FTE terminology is confusing to many 
people. PAC recommends removal of “0.25 FTE.”), which is 
considered two periods in secondary schools and two hours in 
elementary schools.  The specific subjects of attendance are at 
the discretion of the school principal and the superintendent.  
For home school students who wish to attend Sheridan County 
School District #2 schools for half-time, two of the four 
subjects must include reading and mathematics, at the grade 
level consistent with the chronological age of the 
student.Students who are residents of the District and who are 
receiving their education through a home-based educational 
program may request that the school allow admission of the home-
school student to participate in isolated courses by the School 
District.  The School District is not required to accept 
students who only want to participate in isolated classes 
without being enrolled as a full-time student within the School 
District.  The School District will, however, consider any 
request for a home-schooled student to participate in specific 
classes being offered by the School District.  The decision of 
whether or not to allow such participation is left to the sole 
discretion of the School District.  In the event the School 
District determines to accept a request for a home-schooled 
student to participate in specific classes offered by the 
school, the School District shall require the student and 
student’s parents to comply with the School District’s 
admissions process, including immunization requirements.  
Students who are allowed to participate in courses offered by 
the School District shall be subject to all the same policies, 
rules, regulations and course requirements as are applicable to 
all other students participating in that class.  Approval for 
admission into a class requested for the home-school student 



IHBG 
 
 

HOME SCHOOLING (contd.) 
 

2 
 

does not require the School District to approve admission into 
any other classes.  The District may in its sole discretion 
approve admission into some courses and not others.  Priority 
will be given to full-time enrolled students within the District 
as to admission into all classes offered by the School District.  
Admission of home-schooled students will be on a case-by-case 
basis for each student and each class.  A new request must be 
made by the home-schooled student and will be evaluated by the 
School District as to every class or course requested, including 
an advanced level class or any class that the home-schooled 
student might have been approved for.  Participation in any one 
class by a home-schooled student will not guarantee 
participation in any other class.   
 
Home school students desiring to attend public school classes 
must enroll in and attend a minimum of two periods in secondary 
schools (high school and/or junior high school) or a minimum of 
two hours in elementary schools.  The school principal and the 
superintendent or his/her designee must approve of the classes 
or time periods in which the home school student wishes to 
enroll.  Home school students who wish to attend on a half-time 
basis (four periods or four hours of instruction), are required 
to take classes in the reading and mathematics departments for 
two of the four periods, at the grade level consistent with the 
age and ability of the student. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:     1/16/12 
Second Reading:    2/6/12 



NEW - JG 
 
 

ASSIGNMENT OF STUDENTS TO CLASSES AND GRADE LEVELS 
 

1 

Students transferring to the School District will have all 
records evaluated and may be tested with appropriate placement 
examinations.  Placement developed during regulation 
registration is tentative pending arrival of official records or 
placement examination.  The administration will assign the 
student after a thorough evaluation of the records and/or 
placement examinations.   
 
HOME STUDY SCHOOL STUDENTS 
 
Students transferring to the School District from a home-based 
educational program may be required to take a school-selected 
examination in one or more of the following areas to determine 
proper grade placement in reading, writing, mathematics, civics, 
history, literature, and science.  The administration of the 
school, in consultation with appropriate personnel, will 
determine grade/course placement.   
 
HOME STUDY STUDENTS’ REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE IN LIMITED CLASS 
SCHEDULE 
 
Students who are residents of the District and who are receiving 
their education through a home-based educational program may 
request that the school allow admission of the home-school 
student to participate in isolated courses by the School 
District.  The School District is not required to accept 
students who only want to participate in isolated classes 
without being enrolled as a full-time student within the School 
District.  The School District will, however, consider any 
request for a home-schooled student to participate in specific 
classes being offered by the School District.  The decision of 
whether or not to allow such participation is left to the sole 
discretion of the School District.  In the event the School 
District determines to accept a request for a home-schooled 
student to participate in specific classes offered by the 
school, the School District shall require the student and 
student’s parents to comply with the School District’s 
admissions process, including immunization requirements.  
Students who are allowed to participate in courses offered by 
the School District shall be subject to all the same policies, 



JG 
 
 

ASSIGNMENT OF STUDENTS TO CLASSES AND GRADEL LEVELS (contd.) 
 

2 
 

rules, regulations and course requirements as are applicable to 
all other students participating in that class.  Approval for 
admission into a class requested for the home-school student 
does not require the School District to approve admission into 
any other classes.  The District may in its sole discretion 
approve admission into some courses and not others.  Priority 
will be given to full-time enrolled students within the District 
as to admission into all classes offered by the School District.  
Admission of home-schooled students will be on a case-by-case 
basis for each student and each class.  A new request must be 
made by the home-schooled student and will be evaluated by the 
School District as to every class or course requested, including 
an advanced level class or any class that the home-schooled 
student might have been approved for.  Participation in any one 
class by a home-schooled student will not guarantee 
participation in any other class.   
 
See also policies: 
 IHBG  Home Schooling 
 IHBG-P Home Schooling - Procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading: 
Second Reading:   



1 
 

KCC 
 
 

MEMORIAL/MERITORIOUS POLICY 
 

The Board, in its sole discretion, may name a school facility 
after a specific person or organization if the 
person/organization has provided a significant service or made a 
substantial gift to the School District. All requests pertaining 
to the naming of school facilities shall be made in writing to 
the central administrative office. The superintendent will then 
forward the proposal to the Board with his/her recommendations.  
The Board shall not consider a request to name a facility after 
a specific person/organization until at least two (2) years have 
elapsed from the end of the individual’s service. 

 
The Board, in its sole discretion, may provide for a dedication 
space at a school facility to recognize a specific 
person/organization that has provided a significant service or 
substantial gift to the School District.  All requests for 
dedicated spaces shall be made by the building principal in 
writing to the central administrative office. The superintendent 
will then forward the request to the Board with his/her 
recommendations.  The Board shall not consider a request for a 
dedicated space until at least two (2) years have elapsed from 
the end of the individual’s service. The naming of a facility 
for a person may, at the Board’s discretion,can be done if the 
person has provided a significant service or if the district has 
received a substantial gift from thata person/organization. All 
request will be made in writing to the Board of Trustees for 
consideration.  When an honornaming a facility is proposed for 
an individual associated with the district, twelve months shall 
lapse between the end of the individual’s service to Sheridan 
County School District No. 2 andfor consideration of the honor 
by the Board of Trustees.   
 
Each school site may request to dedicate a space (i.e., wall, 
shelf, show case) after a waiting period of twelve months for 
any person who has rendered significant service to that school, 
or has made a substantial gift to that respective site.  Such 
requests for naming a dedicated space will be in writing and 
presented to the Board of Trustees for the memorial/meritorious 
nomination. Each approved request shall be paid for by the 
requestor.If approved by the Board, the recognition shall 
consist of an engraved name plate  A name plate shall be 
engraved no larger than 8” x 10” stating:   

1. In honor of:  Name 
 2. Years of dedication 
 3. A short summation of service 
All expenses associated with the name plate shall be paid by the 
person(s) making the request.  In the case of a newly 
constructed building replacing an existing building, the 



KCC 
 
 

MEMORIAL/MERITORIOUS POLICY (cont’d) 
 

2 
 

memorials from the previous building must be reapproved by the 
Board.  will need to be reapproved by the Board of Trustees 
using the process described in this paragraph.   
 
Areas such as trees, benches and drinking fountains are excluded 
from the above requirements.  The school district recognizes 
that there may be requests for a memorial (in the form of a 
tree, bench, plaque, etc.) to memorialize a  will be those who 
wish to memorialize school district employees, or students who 
hasve passed away, or employees or a students who hasve achieved 
in some meritorious fashion.  All such requests and the placing 
of any memorial must be approved by the Board.    The school 
district will not assume any financial cost with respect to an 
approved memorial. for installation.  Memorials approved by the 
Board shall be maintained by the School District in However, the 
school district has a responsibility to provide on-going 
maintenance for school district property and a responsibility to 
assure the community that the property will be maintained in aa 
safe and aesthetically attractive fashion. The School District 
may remove   District administration will assume responsibility 
for removing a memorial after it has served its memorial purpose 
or should it become necessary for other reasons (i.e., as in the 
case of a tree that dies or a bench that cannot be maintained).  
The school district also has responsibility to ensure thAll 
memorials on School District property must comply at any object 
and/or signage that is placed on school district property be in 
compliance with applicable various city ordinances, state, and 
federal laws.  Consequently, before any private individual or 
organization may be allowed to install any memorial, plaque, 
signage, or other physical form of recognition on any school 
district property, permission must be granted by the Board of 
Trustees and placement must be approved by the Buildings and 
Grounds Department. 
 
First Reading:   4/17/06 11/4/13 
Second Reading:  5/22/06 



 

 
Policies -  

Second Reading 
 
 

 



GBF 
 
 

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK AND FINGERPRINTING 
 
 

 

As a condition of employment, any employee initially hired after 
July 1, 1996, who may have access to minors shall be required to 
submit to fingerprinting for the purpose of the School District 
obtaining criminal history record information (CHRI) regarding 
the prospective employee.  In addition, such employees shall 
provide such other information regarding criminal history as 
requested by the School District in such form as may be required 
by state law.  Fingerprinting and criminal history record 
informationCHRI inquiries shall be conducted according to 
procedures established by the Superintendent of the School 
District, or his/her designee, and in compliance with applicable 
state and federal law.  Any fees associated with fingerprinting 
or the requests for criminal background information shall be 
paid by the prospective employee, except where waived by the 
AdministrationSchool District. 
 
The provisions of this policy shall not apply to persons 
certificated under W.W. 21-2-802 who have met the requirements 
of this law pursuant to the certification process.  
 
STORAGE OF CHRI 
 
All CHRI will be stored in a secure environment with limited 
access only to the responsible party.  Access to any and all 
information disclosed by any criminal background check shall be 
limited to the responsible party, who shall be an employee of 
the School District’s designated by the superintendent 
Superintendent, Assistant Superintendents, and the District 
employee(s) in charge of personnel and employment.  A copy of 
the results may be given to the employee under the provisions of 
P.L. 92-544.  The employee is required to acknowledge receipt of 
the information through a signed receipt.   
 
DESTRUCTION OF CHRI 
 
All CHRI will be destroyed by shredding when no longer needed 
for applicant suitability as determined by the responsible 
party. 
 
Legal reference: W.S. 21-7-401  
    W.S. 7-19-201  
    W.S. 21-2-802  
 
 
First Reading:   6/21/10 11/4/13 
Second Reading:  7/21/10 



 

 

KBD 
 
 

SCHOOL COMMUNITY RELATIONS 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
The Sheridan County School District #2 Board of Trustees 
endorses the concept that parent participation in the affairs of 
the school is essential if the District and parents are to 
maintain mutual confidence and work together to improve the 
quality of education for students. 
 
All parents will be encouraged to express their ideas, concerns 
and judgments about the schools through such means as individual 
building Parent Councils. 
 
Parents in schools receiving Title 1 services will be (1) 
invited to an annual meeting to describe the program; (2) 
offered flexible meeting alternatives; and (3) provided annual 
curriculum evaluation information on individual students and 
school performance. 
 
Sheridan County School District #2 encourages and welcomes the 
parents of our students to visit schools, attend classes, 
participate in activities and communicate with staff on a 
regular basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:   6/25/02 11/4/13 
Second Reading:  7/17/02 



 

 
 

1

KBDA-E 
 
 

PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY 
(TITLE I SCHOOLS) 

 
Pursuant to the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, each Title I 
school must hold at least one annual meeting for Title I parents.  
The school must offer a flexible number of meetings to allow 
parents with work and other commitments to attend.  These meetings 
will be held at such locations and at such times as   
___________________ School will hold at least _______________ 
meetings each year to be scheduled at times to be determined by the 
principal.    
 
The school district must will involve parents in an organized, on-
going, and timely way  in the planning, review, and improvement of 
programs under Title I, Part A, including planning, review, and 
improvement of the school parental involvement policy and, if 
necessary, the joint development of the school-wide program plan.  
The school must will provide parents of participating children:   
 
1. timely information about programs under Title I, Part A;  

 
2. a description and explanation of the curriculum in use at the 

school, the forms of academic assessment used to measure 
student progress, and the proficiency level the students are 
expected to meet; and  

 
3. if requested by parents, opportunities for regular meetings to 

formulate suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in 
decisions relating to the education of their child(ren), and 
respond to any such suggestions as soon as practically 
possible.  

 
Each school receiving Title I funds shall jointly develop with 
parents for all children receiving Title I servicesfunds a school-
parent compact.  This compact will outline how parents, the school 
staff, and students share the responsibility for improved student 
academic improvement and the means by which the school and parents 
will build and develop a partnership to help children achieve the 
Sstate’s high standards.  That compact shall:   
 
1. Ddescribe the school’s responsibility to provide high-quality 

supplemental curriculum and instruction  in a supportive and 
effective learning environment that enables the children to 
meet the sState’s student academic achievement standards, and 
the ways in which the parent will be responsible for 
supporting their children’s learning, such as monitoring 



 

 
 

2

attendance, homework completion, and television watching; 
volunteering in their child’s classroom; and participating, as 
appropriate, in decisions relating to the education of their 
children and positive use of extra-curricular time.   

 
 

KBDA-E 
 
 

PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY 
(TITLE I SCHOOLS) 

 
2. Aaddress the importance of communication between teachers and 

parents in an on-going basis through, at a minimum: 
 
 a.,  parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at 

least annually, during which the compact shall be discussed as 
the compact relates to the individual child’s achievement;  

 
 b.  frequent reports to parents on their child’s progress; and  
 
 c.  reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and 

participate in their child’s class and observation of the 
classroom activities.  

 
The school districts and each individual school receiving Title I 
funds must provide full opportunities for the participation of 
parents with limited English proficiency, parents with 
disabilities, and parents of migratory children, including 
providing information and school reports in a format and, to the 
extent practicable, in a language such parents will understand.   
 
In addition to the above, each school which that receives Title I, 
Part A funds shall coordinate its activities and cooperate with the 
school district in implementing that portion of the school district 
parental involvement policy aimed at building capacity for 
involvement.   
 
NOTE:  THIS POLICY MUST BE DEVELOPED IN CONSULTATION WITH PARENTS. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 P-17

 
NCLBA Reference: Title I, Part D, §1118 
Statutory Reference: 20 U.S.C. §6318 
 
 
First Reading:   5/17/10 11/4/13 
Second Reading:  6/21/10 



                

 
DATE: 
 
TO:  
 
FROM: 
 
SUBJ: 
 
 
WYO Ti
Run. 
 
I will req
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Craig 

Accep

ming recent

quest that you

ce and Accou

mber 20, 20

d of Trustees

Dougherty, 

ptance of Do

ly donated $

u take action

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

Superintend

onation to S

$750 to the C

n to accept th

Dougherty, Super

dent  

Sheridan Hi

Cross Countr

his generous

rintendent 

  

igh School (

ry Club from

s donation to

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

(Action) 

m the proceed

o Sheridan H

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

ds of the Spu

High School.

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

urs 

 



                

 
DATE:  
 
TO:   
 
FROM:  
 
SUBJ:  

 
 
The Boar
SEEDA J
District N
have mad
commun
with SEE
participat
 
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Craig 

Sheri
Partic

rd of Trustee
Joint Powers
Number Two
de it abundan
ity partnersh

EDA. At you
tion in SEED

ce and Accou

mber 19, 20

d of Trustees

Dougherty, 

dan Econom
cipation (Ac

es has, for so
s Board is co
o. In discuss
ntly clear tha
hip efforts, re
ur meeting, I
DA and take

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

Superintend

mic and Edu
ction) 

ome time no
onsistent wit
ions with th
at the school
egardless of 
I would like 
e a vote abou

Dougherty, Super

dent 

ucational D

w, discussed
th the missio
e Mayor and
l district wil

f what decisi
the board to

ut membersh

rintendent 

  

evelopment

d whether co
on and vision
d the Preside
ll continue to
on is made a

o discuss the 
hip in that joi

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

t Authority 

ontinued par
n of Sherida
ent of Sherid
o play an act
about contin
pros and co
int powers b

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

(SEEDA) 

rticipation in
an County Sc
dan College, 
tive role in 

nued involvem
ons of contin
board. 

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

n the 
chool 
I 

ment 
nued 



                

 
DATE:  
 
TO:  
 
FROM: 
 
SUBJ:  
 
 
I am pro
February
 
Currently
Parent/Te
change i
evenings
February
(Kinderg
2:11 pm)
 
I have at
meeting 
questions
 
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Scott 

Snow

posing that 
y 21st as oppo

y, the scho
eacher confe
is approved
 of Wednesd

y 21st.  Stu
garten – 12:2
). 

ttached our 
I will reque
s, please con

ce and Accou

mber 26, 20

d of Trustees

Stults, Direc

w Day Make-

the snow da
osed to Mon

ol calendar
erences and n

d, Parent/Tea
day, Februar
udents wou
21 pm, 1st – 

current cale
est that you 
ntact me. 

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

ctor of Elem

-up Calenda

ay that was t
nday, June 2n

r reflects an
no school fo
acher confe
ry 19th and T
uld then ha
5th grades –

endar as wel
take action 

Dougherty, Super

mentary Educ

ar Change (

taken on Fri
nd.   

n Early Re
or students on
erences wou
Thursday, Fe
ave an Ear
– 1:31 pm, S

ll as one wi
to approve 

rintendent 

  

cation 

(Action) 

iday, Octobe

elease on T
n Friday, Fe

uld take pla
ebruary 20th

rly Release
SJHS & Ft.M

ith the propo
this calend

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

er 4th be ma

Thursday, Fe
ebruary 21st. 
ace after sc
h and the afte

on Friday
Mac/tWP – 2

osed change
dar change.  

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

ade up on Fr

ebruary 20t

  However, 
chool and in
ernoon of Fr
y, February
2:06 pm, & 

es.  At the b
If you have

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

riday, 

th for 
if the 
n the 
riday, 

y 21st 
HS –

board 
e any 



                         
 
 
 

  August 2013 
 
  S    M     T    W      T      F      S               
                                  1   2   3           
 4       5      6      7      8   9 10 
11    12    13    14    15 16 17  
18    19    20    21    22 23 24     
25    26    27    28    29    30    31 
 
  September 2013 
 
  S  M  T  W   T   F   S 
  1    2       3     4       5    6     7    
  8      9     10    11    12  13   14 
15    16     17    18    19 20 21  
22    23     24    25    26 27 28  
29    30                              
   
 
  October 2013 
 
  S  M   T   W   T   F   S 
               1      2      3      4      5            
   6    7    8      9    10    11    12 
 13    14  15    16    17    18    19 
 20    21  22    23    24    25    26  
 27  28    29    30    31 
 
  
  November 2013 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
                                          1      2          
  3      4     5       6      7   8   9  
10    11   12     13    14 15 16  
17    18   19     20    21 22 23    
24    25   26     27    28 29    30 
 
 
 
  December 2013 
 
  S  M   T   W   T   F   S 
  1      2      3       4     5      6      7            
  8      9    10     11    12   13    14 
15    16    17     18    19 20 21  
22    23    24     25    26 27 28  
29    30    31                        
         
 
  January 2014 
 
  S  M  T   W   T   F   S      
                          1      2      3       4 
  5      6      7      8      9    10  11  
12    13    14    15    16 17     18  
19    20    21    22    23 24  25   
26    27    28    29    30  31 
 
               

                   New Teacher 
              Teacher In-Service Days (No School) 
  Vacation 
        Snow Days 

        __   Begin/End of School Year/End of                             
        Quarter 
                  Early Dismissal Day 
 
 The first day of school will be a full day. 
8/16  First Day New Teachers  
8/20  First Day Teachers  
8/20-26   Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL)  
8/27  School Begins  (Full Day) 
9/2  Labor Day  
10/14  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
11/7    K-12 Parent/Tchr Conf. (early dismissal) 

11/8  K-12 Parent/Teacher Conferences 
11/27-29   Thanksgiving Break  
12/23-1/3   Christmas Break  
1/17  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
2/20  K-12 Parent/Tchr Conf. (early dismissal) 

2/21  K-12 Parent/Teacher Conferences 
3/24-28   Spring Break  
4/18  Good Friday   (early dismissal)  
5/24  Fort Mackenzie Graduation                                                                      
5/25  SHS Graduation 
5/26    Memorial Day 
5/30  School Ends  
6/2  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
6/3 & 4   Snow Days  
 
 
         185  Teacher Days 
       175 Student Days 
  
       1st   Quarter Ends 10/25 -  42 days 
  2nd  Quarter Ends  1/16 -   45 days 
  3rd  Quarter Ends  3/21  -  44 days 
  4th  Quarter Ends  5/30   - 44 days 
      
 
     
           

               February 2014 
 

  S  M  T   W  T  F  S 
                                                1      
    2      3     4      5      6   7      8     
    9    10    11   12     13   14    15    
16    17    18   19     20 21 22 
23    24    25   26     27   28 

 
          March 2014 
 
  S  M  T  W  T  F  S 
                                            1      
  2     3    4       5      6    7   8 
  9   10   11    12    13 14 15 
16   17   18    19    20 21 22 
23   24   25    26    27 28 29     

  30   31 
 
   April 2014 
 
  S  M  T  W  T  F   S 
                 1      2      3       4      5 
  6      7     8      9    10     11    12 
13    14   15    16    17     18    19    
20    21   22    23    24     25  26    
27    28   29    30 

 
  
   May 2014 
 
  S  M  T   W  T   F    S 
                                 1      2      3            
  4      5      6      7     8      9    10     
11    12    13    14   15    16 17 
18    19    20    21   22 23 24   
25    26    27    28   29    30    31 
 

 
 
   June 2014 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
  1     2      3      4      5     6       7      
  8      9    10    11    12   13     14 
15    16    17    18    19 20  21 
22    23    24    25    26 27     28 
29   30       
 

 
   July 2014 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
                  1      2      3      4      5 
  6      7      8      9    10    11    12 
13    14    15    16    17    18    19  
20    21     22   23   24    25    26   
27    28    29    30    31 

August 2013 - July 2014 
www.scsd2.com 

 



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

                
 

    
                     
  August 2013 
 
  S    M     T    W      T      F      S               
                                  1   2   3           
 4       5      6      7      8   9 10 
11    12    13    14    15 16 17  
18    19    20    21    22 23 24     
25    26    27    28    29    30    31 
 
  September 2013 
 
  S  M  T  W   T   F   S 
  1    2       3     4       5    6     7    
  8      9     10    11    12  13   14 
15    16     17    18    19 20 21  
22    23     24    25    26 27 28  
29    30                              
   
 
  October 2013 
 
  S  M   T   W   T   F   S 
               1      2      3      4      5            
   6    7    8      9    10    11    12 
 13    14  15    16    17    18    19 
 20    21  22    23    24    25    26  
 27  28    29    30    31 
 
  
  November 2013 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
                                          1      2          
  3      4     5       6      7   8   9  
10    11   12     13    14 15 16  
17    18   19     20    21 22 23    
24    25   26     27    28 29    30 
 
 
 
  December 2013 
 
  S  M   T   W   T   F   S 
  1      2      3       4     5      6      7            
  8      9    10     11    12   13    14 
15    16    17     18    19 20 21  
22    23    24     25    26 27 28  
29    30    31                        
         
 
  January 2014 
 
  S  M  T   W   T   F   S      
                          1      2      3       4 
  5      6      7      8      9    10  11  
12    13    14    15    16 17     18  
19    20    21    22    23 24  25   
26    27    28    29    30  31               

                   New Teacher 
              Teacher In-Service Days (No School) 
  Vacation 
        Snow Days 

        __   Begin/End of School Year/End of                             
        Quarter 
                  Early Dismissal Day 
 
 The first day of school will be a full day. 
8/16  First Day New Teachers  
8/20  First Day Teachers  
8/20-26   Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL)  
8/27  School Begins  (Full Day) 
9/2  Labor Day  
10/14  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
11/7    K-12 Parent/Tchr Conf. (early dismissal) 

11/8  K-12 Parent/Teacher Conferences 
11/27-29   Thanksgiving Break  
12/23-1/3   Christmas Break  
1/17  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
2/19 & 20 K-12 Parent/Tchr  Conf.  (evenings) 
2/21  K-12 Parent/Tchr Conf. (early dismissal) 

3/24-28   Spring Break  
4/18  Good Friday   (early dismissal)  
5/24  Fort Mackenzie Graduation                                                                      
5/25  SHS Graduation 
5/26    Memorial Day 
5/30  School Ends  
6/2 & 3  Teacher In-Service (NO SCHOOL) 
6/4 & 5   Snow Days  
 
 
         185  Teacher Days 
       175 Student Days 
  
       1st   Quarter Ends 10/25 -  41 days 
  2nd  Quarter Ends  1/16 -   45 days 
  3rd  Quarter Ends  3/21  -  45 days 
  4th  Quarter Ends  5/30   - 44 days 
      
           

               February 2014 
 

  S  M  T   W  T  F  S 
                                                1      
    2      3     4      5      6   7      8     
    9    10    11   12     13   14    15    
16    17    18   19     20 21 22 
23    24    25   26     27   28 

 
          March 2014 
 
  S  M  T  W  T  F  S 
                                            1      
  2     3    4       5      6    7   8 
  9   10   11    12    13 14 15 
16   17   18    19    20 21 22 
23   24   25    26    27 28 29     

  30   31 
 
   April 2014 
 
  S  M  T  W  T  F   S 
                 1      2      3       4      5 
  6      7     8      9    10     11    12 
13    14   15    16    17     18    19    
20    21   22    23    24     25  26    
27    28   29    30 

 
  
   May 2014 
 
  S  M  T   W  T   F    S 
                                 1      2      3            
  4      5      6      7     8      9    10     
11    12    13    14   15    16 17 
18    19    20    21   22 23 24   
25    26    27    28   29    30    31 
 

 
 
   June 2014 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
  1     2      3      4      5     6       7      
  8      9    10    11    12   13     14 
15    16    17    18    19 20  21 
22    23    24    25    26 27     28 
29   30       
 

 
   July 2014 
 
  S  M   T  W  T   F   S 
                  1      2      3      4      5 
  6      7      8      9    10    11    12 
13    14    15    16    17    18    19  
20    21     22   23   24    25    26   
27    28    29    30    31 

August 2013 - July 2014 
www.scsd2.com 

Revised 12/13 

 Excellence and Accountability 



 

 

 

                

 

DATE:  

TO:  

FROM: 

SUBJ:  
 
 
Board co
consider 
second p
committe
 
Calenda
administr
calendar 
 
Current m
 
Board P
policies. 
 
Current m
 
Budget C
package 
This com
 
Current m

 
Capital C
This com
construct
 
Current m
 
 
 
 

 Excellen

Novem

Board

Board

Board

ommittee app
serving on o
reference, or
ees are comp

ar Committe
rator, and tw
and the com

members:  E

olicy Comm
 The commi

members:  H

Committee:
and also rev

mmittee meet

members:  R

Constructio
mmittee meet
tion.   

members:  R

ce and Accou

mber 20, 20

d of Trustees

d Chairperso

d Committee

pointments w
one or more 
r let us know
prised of two

ee:  The curr
wo teachers.  
mmittee usua

Erica O’Dell,

mittee:  This 
ittee meets o

Hollis Hackm

  This comm
views and rec
ts three to fiv

Rich Bridger,

on Committ
ts three to fo

Rich Bridger,

untability      Craig D

13 

s 

n and Craig 

es (Informati

will be on th
of the follow

w that you do
o to four boa

rent committ
The commi

ally meets tw

, Ann Perkin

committee r
once a month

man, Jim Perk

mittee meets 
commends s
ve times in A

, Scott Hinin

tee: 
our times per

, Marva Craf

Dougherty, Super

Dougherty, 

on) 

e agenda for
wing board c
o not want to
ard members

tee consists o
ittee will wo

wo to four tim

ns 

reviews curr
h during the 

kins, Wayne

with the teac
alary/benefi

April and Ma

nger, Wayne

r year regard

ft, Scott Hin

rintendent 

 

Superintend

r January.  W
committees. 
o serve on a 
s. 

of two board
rk toward de

mes in early 

rent board po
school year 

e Schatz, Mo

chers to disc
its for admin
ay regarding

e Schatz, Mo

ding major m

ninger, Ann P

 
A
2
P
S
P
F

dent 

We would lik
 Please give
committee. 

d members, o
eveloping a 
spring.   

olicies and r
at lunch. 

olly Steel  

cuss the sala
nistrators and
g salary/bene

olly Steel 

maintenance 

Perkins 

Administrative O
201 N. Connor, Su
P.O. Box 919 
Sheridan, WY 828
Phone: 307-674-74
Fax:  307-674-504

ke to have yo
e us a first an
 Most of the

one 
school year 

recommends

ary/benefits 
d classified s
efits package

and capital 

ffices 
uite 100 

801 
405 

41 

ou 
nd 
e 

s new 

staff.  
es.   



Sick Leave Bank Committee: 
This committee is made up of one board member, four teachers, and one administrator (Terry 
Burgess).  The Sick Leave Bank Committee meets to review and approve sick leave bank 
requests from certified staff within five working days of the request.   
 
Current member:  Hollis Hackman 

 
Scholarship Committee:   
Committee meetings are usually held during lunchtime, unless the committee wants input from 
the community and/or teachers. Those special meetings may be held in the late afternoon or 
evenings.   
 
Current member:  Marva Craft 
 
Related Representation: 
Sheridan Recreation District Board: Scott Hininger 
Sheridan Community Educational Foundation (SCEF) Board: Rich Bridger 
 
 
Please respond to the Chairman of the Board or Craig by Tuesday, January 7th.   If you have any 
questions please contact Craig. 
 
 
 
 


	Board Cover Dec 2, 2013
	Agenda 2 December 2013 Board Meeting
	Election of Officers
	November 4, 2013 Board Minutes Draft
	Capital Construction Dec 2013 (3)
	Bd  Memo policy 2013-11-25
	Board Policies First Reading
	EBBA
	GBJ
	IHBG-P
	JG
	KCC
	Board Policies Second Reading
	GBF
	KBD
	KBDA-E
	Acceptance of Donation to Sheridan High School
	SEEDA Issue
	board memo snow day make-up 12 3 13
	2013-2014 Calendar
	2013-2014 Calendar Updated 12-2013
	Board Committees


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




